The Wisconsin Public Employer 

Group Life Insurance Program

Request for Proposal

#ETC0011
ADDENDUM – RFP QUESTIONS
March 25, 2003

Please note the following additional requirement for Insurers and respond with your ability to comply and any comments in Tab 3 – Response to Proposal Questions of your proposal.  

The Insurer will provide annual SAS reports to the Department and its internal auditors based on the following:
· SAS 70 "Reports on the Processing of Transactions by Service Organizations"

· SAS 78 "Consideration of Internal Control in a Financial Statement Audit: An Amendment to Statement of Auditing Standards # 55."

· SAS 88 "Service Organizations and Reporting on Consistency" 
The following are the answers to questions submitted in writing by March 17, 2003.  Please note the proposal response deadline of April 7, 2003.

1. What retention level is being used by Minnesota Mutual? 
In the 2001 policy year, the retention level was as follows:

State Employee Plan




$   576,218

State Spouse and Dependent Plan


$     22,580


Local Government Employee Plan


$ 1,003,151

Local Government Spouse and Dependent Plan
$      64,511


2. Are we to include commission in our pricing? If so, what is the requested amount?
No commissions are to be included in the pricing.

3. Is the five-year contract term considered to be a five-year rate guarantee?
No.
4. How many Local Government employers are eligible to participate in the Group Insurance Plan?  
All local government employers are eligible to participate in the Group Insurance Plan.  There are currently 1,331 local government employers who participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System.  Local government employers who do not participate in the WRS may also elect to participate in the Group Life Insurance plan.

5. Is an electronic census available of all eligible or covered employees that includes DOB, Gender, Salary, and Supp/Additional election amount?
This information is not readily available.  We ask that you develop your proposal using the census summary information in Appendix E.
6. Is there a maximum benefit (per employee)?
Employees may elect a benefit up to five times their prior year earnings.  There is no dollar limit.

7. If no census is available, pleas provide the age and total benefit amount of the top 25 employees (in relation to combined Life benefits).
Please see the table in Appendix F regarding “pooled amounts of coverage”.

8. Why is the stop loss 125% based on volume for employees, but based on premium for dependents?
The stop-loss limit on employee insurance is approximately 125% of expected claims for both active employees and retirees.  For simplicity, the stop-loss limit for spouse and dependent insurance was established at 125% of premium.
9. It is noted in the RFP that the State and Local groups are experience rated independently, yet the experience reported shows combined amounts. Is this data available separately?
The experience is reported separately for State and local government groups.  See Appendix E, Section I for State and Appendix E, Section II for local government.
10. What is meant by “annuitant lives” throughout the RFP?
Technically, annuitants are retirees who qualify for a retirement benefit.  In the context of plan provisions and data, this term is generally used to refer to retirees under age 65 who maintain life insurance coverage by continuing to pay premiums.
11. Page 8; Sec.4.1.1 a. – What is the difference between the 2002 group life income for 2002 and group life coverage in-force for 2002.
We are interested in your premium income for 2002 as well as coverage in force.  In other words, the premiums and the amount of coverage.
12. Page 8; Sec.4.1.1 f. – Please clarify what is meant by the NAIC designation of a “first or second priority company”.
This is actually an older designation not currently in use by the NAIC.  In the past, the NAIC Examiner Teams assigned a “priority” designation to prioritize the financial surveillance process.  We apologize for the error and confusion.
13. Page 11; Sec.4.2.1 4. ii. – Please provide details on how the Life to Health program operates currently, as well as the expectation of the bidder.  We are not clear on how this operates based on the description in the RFP.
The Insurer works closely with the Department to coordinate the conversion of the value of life insurance to pay for health or long-term care premiums.  Insured employees request conversion information and application from the Department.  The Department confirms their eligibility and their life insurance coverage, then sends the employee conversion information including an estimate of the conversion value, effective date, etc.  If the employee decides to convert, they return the application to the Department for processing. 

The Department sends the application to the Insurer who reviews the effective date, conversion amount, etc. and sets up an account for each individual.  

Premiums for health insurance coverage are remitted by the Insurer to the Department who then remits the premium to the carrier.  Premiums for long-term care insurance is remitted by the Insurer directly to the long-term care companies (there are currently two) for each employee.  

The Insurer maintains account balance information for each individual who has a conversion account.  The Insurer is responsible for contacting long-term care insurance carriers to confirm premium amount and effective date.  The Insurer notifies the insured of the conversion account balance and when the balance in the account is close to being exhausted.  The Insurer works with staff at the Department to assure that the employee’s premium payments are continued appropriately (either through annuity deduction for health insurance, or direct pay for long-term care insurance) when the conversion account it exhausted.

14. Page 17; Sec. 5.8 – Please clarify the requirements for the bidder to maintain GAAP accounting using separate ledgers, and the prohibition of commingling State funds with any other funds in the Insurer’s control. 
The Insurer is required to maintain separate and independent financial records for the assets related to the State and local government employee plans and the State and local government spouse and dependent plans.  Please also see the response to Question 27.
15. Page 23; Sec. 6.2.2 -- It is noted that premium rates are to remain constant indefinitely.  Has there been any rate changes in the past five years on any of the rate structures (local, State, Dependent or Stop Loss)?
See Appendix D, page 33 for State premium rate history and page 36 of Appendix D for local government premium rate history.  Stop- loss rates and changes can be found in Administrative Agreement and Amendments (link is found in Appendix F-Additional Information, E.).

16. Page 61; Sec. 6.6.2 i. – Please describe in detail the current reinsurance arrangement mentioned in this section. Is it mandatory that the bidding carrier maintain such an arrangement if awarded the contract? 
Please see Appendix D, Section I. B. (page 23) for a discussion of the reinsurance arrangement.  The current arrangement will continue.
17. Page 1 Appendix A #1 – What is meant by “own circumstances and needs” in reference to the Local government participating employers? 
Local Government employers range in size from one or two employees to thousands of employees.  Some employers can accommodate electronic processes, while others perform all operations manually.  Employers may be very centralized with one administrative office or may be decentralized, with many administrative offices, billing units, and administrators.

18. Page 15 Appendix C #10.—It is noted that two large entities do not currently report premium to the Insurer. How is premium paid for these groups?
These employers collect monthly premiums from insured employees and remit the employee premium, along with their employer share that is calculated as a percentage of the total premium, to the Department.  The Department then remits to the Insurer.

19. Page 15 Appendix C #12.— Please provide additional detail on what is involved with conducting this “census”. What is involved? Who pays for this?
The annual renewal census process updates life insurance information for each insured employee.  As part of the annual Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS) reconciliation process, all local government employers provide the Department with their employees’ WRS earnings from the previous year.  The Department sends the WRS earnings to the Insurer in March of each year.  The Insurer updates their records and sends a “Renewal Census” document to each employer which lists each of their insured employees along with the prior year earnings, their coverage amount and their premium amount.  The employer reviews the census and reports any adjustments or corrections to the Insurer.  The premium amount is updated annually in July.

A renewal census is performed for state agencies in a different manner.  Each January, the State payroll processing centers that are currently reporting premium to the Insurer send the Insurer an electronic listing of insured employees, their previous year’s WRS earnings, the coverage amount of each type of insurance, and the employee and employer premium amounts.  The Insurer compares the census to their records and sends exception reports to the state agencies that show any discrepancies between the Insurer records and the employer’s records.  The premium amount is updated in March.

The costs for the process are the responsibility of the Insurer.

20. Page 15 Appendix C #14 – If retirees are being billed annually or semi-annually, are they pre-paying for periods of coverage? 
Yes.
21. Page 38 Appendix D A.1 and A.2 – It is not clear how this is to work. The RFP states that the Post Retirement funds are the responsibility of the State, yet the Insurance Company retains terminal liability? How is this handled in an equitable manner?
Please refer to Articles B and C immediately following the cited items (Appendix D, page 38) for discussion of the allocation of plan reserves and the future experience accounting of reserves retained by the Insurer.
22. Page 58  Appendix E, D.1 – 

a) Are the Claim amounts shown in the exhibit Paid claims (based on Paid Date) for each period, or Paid on Incurred (based on Date of Loss) for each period?
Claim amounts are incurred claims charged to experience during the policy year (paid plus change in pending). 
b) Where are the pass through expenses for actuarial services, etc? Why are they not on this exhibit
These expenses were omitted based on materiality considerations, as they average less than $10,000 annually.

c) Are the premium amounts based on the Stop Loss Rates? 
Premiums are the actual amounts paid by employees and employers.
23. Page 59 Appendix E, D.3 – The note at the bottom of the page refers to the Spouse rate of $2.50 monthly, but it is noted on page 82 that the rate is $2.00. Which is correct?
Both are correct.  The State Plan rate is listed on page 59 and is $2.50.  The local plan rate is listed on page 82 and is $2.00.
24. How much money would be transferred from the State of Wisconsin and Minnesota Mutual on 1/1/04?  It is our understanding that the liability for current Retirees would stay with the current carrier, and any remaining money would be returned to the GIB over 84 months.  Please confirm.
Liability for current retirees and for disabled employees under age 65 would remain with the current carrier, along with sufficient reserves to cover this liability.  The remaining reserves would be transferred to the State in 84 monthly installments, with the first payment due one month after termination.

Articles 6.2.4 and 6.3.4 in Section 6 - Cost Proposal, provide initial deposits to assume for purposes of post-retirement insurance fund projections only.
25. What would be the timing for amounts transferred to the new carrier after 1/1/04?  Presumably the Contingent Liability Reserves would follow sometime after the potential termination of the MML contract.
Please see the response to Question 24 above.
26. If money is moved from the current carrier, would the client receive Capital Credits?
Please see the response to Question 24 above.
27. Define what is meant by separate fund accounting (in Section 5.8)?  We need clarification regarding the requirement of the separate checking account.  Normally, we would track a fund balance for a case via an excel spreadsheet.  Is this want their intention, or do they truly want to separate their money in a Separate Account?

Please see the response to Question 14.  Minnesota Life maintains a separate bank account for depositing all premium payments from local governments.  A separate account is not required.
